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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
37 East Main Street

	Historic Name:
Charles & Sybil Boynton House

	Uses:
Present:  single residence


	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1845

	Source:  maps, deeds

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival, Gothic Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
brick

	Wall/Trim:  
wood clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


None 

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Two 2-story bay windows w/ gable roofs added to 

front, ca. 1894


Additions on rear



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:  0.15 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on East Main Street at its junction with Union Street on a lot with mature trees. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Charles & Sybil Boynton House is a two-story wood frame single dwelling located on the southerly side of East Main Street near its intersection with Union Street.  Built ca. 1845, the house originally had a five-bay front façade with a center entrance.  Around 1894 this facade was altered by the addition of the existing matching two-story box bay windows on either side of the doorway.  These bays are distinguished by paneled walls beneath the windows and tall gable dormers in the roof.  A porch of similar period was added at the entrance leaving the original wide pilasters at the corners intact.  The Greek Revival features on the gable ends were also preserved: a heavy entablature along the raking roof edge and fenestration.  A two-story cross-gable ell attached to the west side of the rear wall also is an original feature, although it has been enlarged by other additions.  A porch on the west wall also is a ca. 1894 addition.  The house site slopes to the rear exposing most of the brick basement of the rear ell at grade.

The house is positioned at the northern, East Main Street end of its lot and is surrounded by lawn.  There is a short driveway on the west side of the building.
The Charles & Sybil Boynton House, built ca. 1845, is a distinctive example of a Greek Revival-period house updated with the addition of stylish gabled bay windows in ca. 1894.  The house retains its historic wood clapboard siding and six-over-six and two-over-two wood window sash survive from its two principal construction periods.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
Town assessor records state that the house at 37 East Main Street was built in 1850, but architectural evidence suggests that it was built somewhat earlier, about 1845. Certainly by 1850, the federal census indicates, Georgetown trader Charles Boynton was living in the house with his wife Sybil Hunt Boynton, a native of Bath, New Hampshire who he married in 1849; their children Olive and Charles; Charles Boynton’s mother Jane, then seventy-six years old, and Mahala Hunt, probably an older sister of Sybil Hunt Boynton. 

Born in 1813 in Georgetown, Charles Boynton was among the children of Eben and Jane Boynton; his older brother William was a longtime Georgetown resident and property owner. About 1840 Charles Boynton was working as a fruit dealer. In January 1855 Sybil Hunt Boynton died, and in July of the same year Boynton married the Georgetown widow Jane Hill (or Hills) Hilliard. The 1860 census shows him as a trader with $8,000 in real property (the 1872 map seems to indicate that he also owned the house at 35 East Main St.), and he shared the house with his wife Jane and his three children Olive, Charles A., and Arthur W. Boynton.
The 1870 directory shows Boynton as a horse dealer at the “Corner” in Georgetown, but by that year he had moved with his family to Gloucester, where he kept a stable. Boynton continued to own 37 East Main Street until 1894, when he sold it, and the house at 35 East Main Street, to provisions dealer Prescott Poor, who had married Jane Hill Boynton’s sister Mehitable Hill.
 Censuses suggest that Boynton had leased the 37 East Main property to Poor for many years before selling it to him; Poor is indicated as the occupant on the 1884 town map.   Boynton died in Newbury in 1896, and his widow Jane died in Georgetown five years later.
Prescott Poor was the son of Georgetown farmer Edward Poor and his wife Maria Bacon Poor . Born in 1833, he was one of at least nine children, and by the age of sixteen he was working as a shoemaker. In 1857 he married Mehitable Hill, and by 1860 he is shown as a shoemaker with no real property living with his wife and young son Henry Prescott Poor in a two-family house in Georgetown. The 1870 census shows Poor as a butcher owning no real estate; by 1880 he ran a meat and vegetable market. From at least 1874 Poor’s shop was on Main Street at the rear of the Masonic block. 
The 1900 census lists Poor as a property owner and grocer after John L. Huntington, who lived at 31 East Main Street.  In 1912 Prescott Poor died at the age of seventy-eight, and his widow Mehitable remained at 37 East Main until her own death in 1922. In June that year his son Henry P. Poor sold the property to Charles S. Hamilton, who defaulted on his mortgage with Georgetown Savings Bank in May 1929. The bank sold the property at auction to Emma Desjardins for $1780.
 Desjardins was the wife of Ludger Desjardins, and the couple moved with their young children Alice, Arthur, and Florence from Peabody. Born Francois Ludger Desjardins in Salem in 1888, Desjardins’ father Joseph had emigrated from Quebec and worked as a milkman in Salem. Ludger was a twenty-one-year-old shoemaker in 1910 when he married Quebecois immigrant Emma Goudreau, an eighteen-year-old shoe shop operative. By 1930 Desjardins was working as a shoe factory heeler and by 1940 as an edge setter. By that year the family had moved to Rowley, having defaulted on their mortgage for 37 East Main Street in September 1935; Ludger Desjardins died in Rowley in 1942.
In February 1936 Georgetown Savings Bank again sold the property, this time to Alice Marshall Morse (1869-1959).
 Born in Boston, Morse was the second wife of John Asaph Morse (1861-1945); they married in Haverhill in 1905, and both had divorced their first partners. John A. Morse was a Georgetown native; his father Joseph T. Morse was a stone cutter and later an agent for marble dealers involved in cemetery work. John Morse was a shoe laster in a Haverhill shoe factory. By 1940, when he and his wife were living at 37 East Main Street, he had retired, and they shared the house with their son Eugene Asaph Morse (1907-89) and his wife Velma C. Downing, a Virginia native and bookkeeper whom he married in Georgetown in 1928. Eugene A. Morse was a professional musician who organized and ran a twelve-piece dance orchestra named Gene’s Melody Boys,
 and he was also a Georgetown selectman. He supplemented his musician’s income by shoe factory work and truck driving.
John Asaph Morse died in 1945, and by 1957 37 East Main Street was occupied by his widow Alice, Eugene and Velma Morse, and their son John Asaph Morse, who was twenty-eight years old and worked as a milkman in Haverhill. In 1948 Alice Morse deeded the property to her son, and he and his family occupied it until 1987, when the Morses sold 37 East Main Street and the adjacent property at 35 East Main, acquired in 1940, to current owners Michael R. and Brenda J. Dubois.
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Charles & Sybil Boynton House, built ca. 1845, is a distinctive example of a Greek Revival-period house updated with the addition of stylish gabled bay windows in ca. 1894.  The house retains its historic wood clapboard siding and six-over-six and two-over-two wood window sash survive from its two principal construction periods.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Charles and Jane J. Boynton to Prescott Poor, 19 November 1894, SED 1430:337.


� H. P. Poor, administrator estate Mehitable Poor, to Charles S. Hamilton, 2 June 1922, SED 2517:340; Georgetown Savings Bank to Emma Desjardins, 28 May 1929, SED 2808:449.


� Georgetown Savings Bank to Alice M. Morse, 18 February 1936, SED 3066:463.


� Lorna Colquhoun, “Friends Will Rally ‘Round,” unidentified clipping, obituary for Eugene A. Morse on Kimbrell Family Tree, Ancestry.com.


� Alice M. Morse to Alice M. and Eugene A. Morse, 20 October 1948, SED 3544: 261; Eugene A. Morse to Eugene A. and Velma C. Morse, 4 December 1959, SED 4627:118; Eugene A. and Velma C. Morse to Brenda J. and Micahel R. Dubois, Bradford, 6 May 1987, SED 8953:413.
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